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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Participants and Management of Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP (the
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS
Accounting Standards).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Republic of Kazakhstan, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December
2022 were audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 6 February 2023.

© 2024 «KNMI Ayaurs JLLC, K Pecny® ] LiHa Calec TipKenreH _ puiniri 83 ) ingjikrepi
wekrenred KPMG | ional Limited ar K BIHBIH, KYP KipetiH KPMG Tteyencis dupmanapsl Mahaiisly yisiMsHbIH
KaTLICYLEICH. Bapnbil KYKuIKTEP KOPFaNFaH.

© 2024 KPMG Audit LLC, a company incorporated under the Laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemational Limited, a private English pany limited by g All rights reserved.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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— Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiengie: #iaternal control that we identify during our audit.

'e audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is:

of the Republic/of Kazakhstan
Auditor's Qualification Certified
Ne M®-0000182 of 2 June 2014

KPMG Audit LLC _ _
State License to conduct audit #0000021, dated 6 December 2006 issued by the Ministry
of Finance of the )?e ublicvof Kazakhstan

/ fl" | ’_.. - - J

[
Sergey Demepfyev
General Diregtor of KPMG Audit LLC
acting on the basis of the Charter

5 February 2024




Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP
Statement of Financial Position

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge Note 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 198,069,312 211,652,908
Right-of-use assets 195,229 69,977
Long-term value added tax receivable 128 -
Intangible assets 225,993 87,160
Other non-current financial assets - 2,791
Total non-current assets 198,490,662 211,812,836
Current assets
Inventories 1,131,097 1,026,984
Income tax prepaid 415,628 50,923
Receivables from related parties 5 5,214 52,969
Trade receivables - 23,079
Other current assets 637,309 1,221,372
Bank deposits 7 23,527,680 21,856,337
Cash and cash equivalents 8 23,836,867 17,871,484
Total current assets 49,553,795 42,103,148
TOTAL ASSETS 248,044,457 253,915,984
EQUITY
Charter capital 13,000,000 13,000,000
Revaluation reserve for property, plant and equipment 58,427,409 60,354,743
Other reserves (3,589) (4,991)
Retained earnings 92,409,910 60,772,653
TOTAL EQUITY 163,833,730 134,122,405
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 9 - 32,197,304
Provision for decommissioning obligation for pipeline and its facilities

and land recultivation 4 8,843,517 11,282,742
Lease liabilities 119,349 53,056
Deferred tax liability 16 28,460,797 29,825,210
Other non-current liabilities 18,631 20,264
Total non-current liabilities 37,442,294 73,378,576
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 9 32,842,895 33,900,576
Trade payables for core operations 1,129,953 666,692
Payables to related parties 5 1,574,438 1,508,951
Contract liabilities for oil transportation - related parties 5 3,848,963 3,613,692
Contract liabilities for oil transportation - third parties 10 4,876,996 4,699,947
Other payables and accrued liabilities 11 2,362,703 1,987,721
Lease liabilities 132,485 37,424
Total current liabilities 46,768,433 46,415,003
TOTAL LIABILITIES 84,210,727 119,793,579
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 248,044,457 253,915,984
Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on 5 Febraary 2024:

\ LY 2 Y
C J/L o el

Acting General Director

Ye.D. Turlykhanov
Deputy General Director for
Econhomics

vV

A.V. Kochergova
ChieE Accountant

The notes set out on pages 5 to"29 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge Note 2023 2022
Revenue 12 86,842,636 86,318,840
Cost of sales 13 (38,942,151) (36,842,375)
Gross profit 47,900,485 49,476,465
General and administrative expenses 14 (4,502,444) (4,241,832)
Other operating (expense)/income, net 15 (664,887) 6,950,882
Impairment income on property, plant and equipment 6 - 250,183
Operating income 42,733,154 52,435,698
Finance income 16 1,947,322 416,870
Finance costs 16 (4,668,199) (15,727,168)
Profit before income tax 40,012,277 37,125,400
Income tax expense 17 (8,041,172) (7,674,036)
Profit for the year 31,971,105 29,451,364
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 6 - 22,987,858
Income tax effect 17 - (4,597,571)
Revaluation of provision for decommissioning obligation for

pipeline and facilities and land recultivation 4 3,423,523 4,323,246
Income tax effect (684,705) (864,649)
Actuarial loss on employee benefits liabilities 1,762 (282)
Income tax effect (350) 56
Total other comprehensive income for the year 2,740,220 21,848,658
Total comprehensive income for the year 34,711,325 51,300,022

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on 5 February 2024.

; ;m%c 19, ow%

Gao Hui Ye. D. Turlykhanov
Acting General Dlrector Deputy General Dlrector for
Economics

A.V. Koghergova
Chie;,Accountant

The notes set out on pages 5 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP
Statement of Changes in Equity

Revaluation
reserve for

In thousands of Kazakhstani property, plant Retained

Tenge Charter capital and equipment Other reserves earnings Total
At 1 January 2022 13,000,000 42,691,315 (4,765) 37,135,833 92,822,383
Profit for the year - - - 29,451,364 29,451,364
Other comprehensive

income - 21,848,884 (226) - 21,848,658
Total comprehensive

income for the year - 21,848,884 (226) 29,451,364 51,300,022
Realised revaluation

reserve for property,

plant and equipment - (4,185,456) - 4,185,456 -
Dividends declared - - - (10,000,000) (10,000,000)
Balance at 1 January

2023 13,000,000 60,354,743 (4,991) 60,772,653 134,122,405
Profit for the year - - - 31,971,105 31,971,105
Other comprehensive

income - 2,738,818 1,402 - 2,740,220
Total comprehensive

income for the year - 2,738,818 1,402 31,971,105 34,711,325
Realised revaluation

reserve for property,

plant and equipment - (4,666,152) - 4,666,152 -
Dividends declared - - - (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
At 31 December 2023 13,000,000 58,427,409 (3,589) 92,409,910 163,833,730

On 5 July 2023, based on the performance results for 2022 the Company declared dividends to the Participants in the
amount of Tenge 5,000,000 thousand: Tenge 2,500,000 thousand to KazTransQil JSC and Tenge 2,500,000 thousand
to China National Oil and Gas Exploration, including withholding income tax. Dividends to the Participants were paid
on 14 July 2023 (2022: dividends declared and paid amounted to Tenge 10,000,000 thousand).

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management on 5 Febru@ry 2024:

Ul

Y L)

s

7N

A
! 4

Gao Hui
Acting of the General Director

Ye.D. Turlykharov
Deputy General Director for
Economics

A.V. Kochergova

Chief Accountant

The notes set out on pages 5 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP
Statement of Cas Flows

For the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge Note 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash inflows from operating activities
Transportation services rendered 82,158,538 81,830,558
Advances received 8,725,959 8,313,640
Interest received 489,741 339,677
Other inflows 610,834 347,579
Cash outflows from operating activities
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (22,642,072) (21,201,856)
Advances paid (83,491) (44,747)
Salaries paid (2,281,986) (2,169,893)
Interests paid 9 (3,636,347) (3,693,038)
Income tax (10,324,089) (8,352,472)
Other payments to budget (4,279,094) (4,789,766)
Other payments (847,013) (784,214)
Net cash flow from operating activities 47,890,980 49,795,468
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash inflows from investing activities
Withdrawal of bank deposits 30,947,955 20,277,231
Cash outflows from investing activities
Placement of bank deposits (33,023,476) (20,197,122)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2,872,665) (1,083,577)
Acquisition of intangible assets - (14,900)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,948,186) (1,018,368)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash outflows from financing activities
Repayment of loans 9 (31,694,250) (83,571,700)
Payment of dividends (5,000,000) (10,000,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities (39,728) (557,212)
Other payments (1,164) (62,996)
Net cash used in financing activities (36,735,142) (94,191,908)
Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,207,652 (45,414,808)
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash and cash

equivalents (242,269) 4,887,902
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting

year 8 17,871,484 58,398,390
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 23,836,867 17,871,484
Approved for ary 2024:

)siue and signed on behalf of the Managementon 5 F '

0,5 4k O /il

Gao Hui \
Acting General Director

Ye.D. Turlykhanov V A.V. Kochergova
Deputy General Director for Chief Accountant
Economics

The notes set out on pages 5 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 Company and its operations

Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP {the “Company") was established as a limited I|ab|I|ty partnership on 8 July 2004in
-accordance with the legisiation of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Company Is owned by two founders: China Natignal
QOil and.Gas Exploration and Development Company (‘CNODC"), a subsidiary of China National Petroléum Corporatlon_
(“CNPC™), and KazTransOil Joint Stock Company (“KazTransOnI"}, a suh5|d|ary of National Company “KazMunayGas”
Joint Stock Cempany ¢ KazMunayGas ); each founder owns 50% share in the sharter capital of the Company. The
Company is ‘jointly. controlled by KazTransOil and CNODC on an equal basis: KaxTrans0il is controlied by the:
Government of the: Republic of Kazakhstan thraugh ‘National Welfare Fund "Samruk-Kazyna" JSC helding company
(“Bamruk-Kazyna™ (90%) and the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan (10%), while.GNODC is fully owned by
the Government of the Pecple’s Reptiblic of China (PRC) through CNPC state-owned company.

On 1? May 2004, the Government of the People ] Repubhc of Chlna and the Government of {he Republic pf_ Kazakhstan
2004, CNPC and KazMunayGas entered into. the Agreement for main’ coristruction principles of 965.1 km long Atasu-
‘Alashankou oil pipeline, and on 20 December 2006, CNPC and KazMunayGas entered into the Agreament for:main
construction principles of the second phase of Kazakhstan-China oil pipeline, as well gs ‘Addenduri No. 1 thereto dated
18 August 2007.

On 17 November 2005, the Company received a patent for investment, construction, operafion and repair of Atasu-
Alashankou ol pipeline in-China valid-untit 46 Novembier 2025. Therefore the- Company reglstered its-branch in China.

The Company constructed and put into operation Atasu-Alashankou ojl pipeline with capaclty of 7 millioh tonnes per
year on 28 July 2006. In 2008 the Company put into operation additiohal equlpment to increase capacity of the oil
pipeline up to-10 million tonnes per year.

Technological oif for- pipetine filling in the amount of Tenge 401,440 metric tonnes ‘was provided by PetraChina
International Kazakhstan LLP (“PetroChina”). Technological oil belongs fo the PetroChina.

‘On 8 May 2008, the Company received an approval to perform installation and construction works for Kenkiyak-Kumko!
oil pipeline issued by the Committee for Construction and Housing and Utilities Infrastructuie of the Ministry of Industry
and Trade. of the Republic of Kazakhstan, and signed contracts with OGCC KazStroyService and China Petroleum
Pipeline Engineering Kazakhstan LLP for project develapment, delivery of materials and construction of 794,263 km
long Kenkiyak-Kumkol oif pipeline- with rated annual capacity of first stage. of second phase around 10 miillion tonnes.

On 1 July 2008, construction of the line section of the-oil pipeline Kenkiyak-Kumkol was:completed.

Cn 7 October 2009, the Company put into operation the first commissioning ‘and start-tip complek of Kenklyak-Kurnkol
oil pipeline with rated capacity. at the first phase of 10 miillion tonnes per yéar.

‘Teghnological oil for pipelirie fi flllng is provided by the Shippers in-accordance with the Technical Agreement i in.an
amount proporiional to:their share in the total traffic. Technological oil is in safe custody. ownershlp remains with the
Shippers. Technoiogical oil is retumed upon termination of obllgations under the Ol Transportation Agreement or
upén transfer of technotogical oil voluiries to the pipeline by thé third jparfies;, or upan transfer of awnership of
technological oil to the third parties, or upon completion of operation of Kenkiyak-Kurkol oil pipeline.

On 10 Decernber 2010, the Comipany compléted cammissioning-of facilities of first stage of second phase of Kenkiyak-.
Kurnkel il pipeline construction.

in 2011 and 2013the Company put into operation additional equipment to increase capacity of Atasu-Alashankou oil
pipetine up to 20 mitlion tonnes per year, During 2013 and 2014, the Company performed construction works to'connect
pump station (*PS") No.8 to the 35 kV ‘open distiibution unit of 500 kV Agadyr substation, including- construction,
installation; commissioning actmt:es and start-up operation of the equipment.with the capac:ty 6f 40,000 kVA.,

On 2 March. 2015, line service roads in the Eastem Kazakhstan region of tofal distance of 50.06 km were put into
-operation.

The Company is treated as a monopolist, and therefore is subject to-regulation by the Commities for Regulation: of
Natural Monopolies and Protection of Competition of the Ministry of National Economy of the Repubfic of Kazakhstan
(“CRNM”). The CRNM approves tariff rates for oil tranisportation based on reimbursement of costs ingurred on assets-
used. On 31 December 2019, according to the Order No.74-08 of the Chairman. of the: CRNM, the domestic. market
tariff for the. period of 2020-2024 was: approved in the amount of Tenge 4,817 pertonne per 1,000 km {net of VAT for
-2023 (2022: Ténge 4,359 pertonne). ' '

Cn 5 May 2015, the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan “On Making Amendments to-Some Legislative Acts. of the-
Repub[tc of Kazakhstan on the Issues of Natural Monopolles and Regulated Markets™ was issued, according o which:
services for transporiation of oif and. ol products. through main pipelines for transit purposes through the Republic of
Kazakhstan and export outside the Republic of Kazakhstan are-not included in the scope of natural monopalies in the-
Repubiic of Kazakhstan. Afterthe enactment, the Company has the right for independent approval of tariff rates for oil
transportation for the above-menticned purposes On 28 December 20186, the Company approved a tariff for export
purposes outside the Republic' of Kazakhstan in the-amount of Tenge 6,799 per tonne per 1,000 km (net of VAT).




‘Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2023

During 2023 and: 2022 the Company transported11,198° thousand tonnes of oil and 11,251 thousand tonnes of ail,
respectively, through Atasu-Alashankou: oil pipeline. Additionally, in 2023 and 2022, the Company- transported 9,989
thousand tonnes of transit ol and' 9,989 thousarid tonnes of tranisit o, respectlveiy, based on the Agreement bétween
the -Govemments of the Repuhllc of Kazakhstan -and ‘thé Russian: Federation..on cooperatlon in tranepor{atlon of
Rues;en oil throughithe. territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan to-the People s Republlc of-China, which came intoforée
on 1. January 2014. The oil transpartation tariff under this agreement is determiined in.accordance with the contract
entered between the Company, KazTransCil and Resneft Oit Cémpany QJsc ("Rosneﬂ”)

During 2023 'and 2022, the Company fransported 7,977 thousand tonnes of ol and 8,496 thousand tonnes of: oil,
reSpectwely, through Kenkiyak-Kumkol oil pipeline.

The Cormpany's registered office is: 109V Abay Avenue, Alrmaty, 050008, Republic-of Kazakhstan.

2  Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance. with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the international Accounting Standard Board (JASE?).

These financiat statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the: financial instruments. that are
measured at fair value on initial recognltlon and property, plant and-equipment measured at fair value through profit or
loss and other-comprehensive income and at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The $igniﬁ'_c_ant_.accounting_-policies applied in the preparation of these financial 's{atemente-are'_ set out below, These:
piificiples have been consistently applied to all periods presented statements, unless specified otherwise:

All financial information presented in Tenge -has besh rounded to the nearest thausand, except when otherwise
indicated. The Company's functional currency is Tenge.

3 Significant accounting policies
Foreign currency transiation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are initially recorded by the Company in its functional currency at the rates effective at
the date-of the transaction first guaiified for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currency are translated to thie functional currency at the spot
rate at the reportlng date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulttng from the ‘setflement of the transactions and from the tranislation: of
monetary assets and ffabilities are included in the statemerit of profit-or loss‘and other comprehensive income:

Non-monetary items- that are measured in terms of historical cost'in a foreign currency are ‘translated using: the
exchange rates as at tha dates of {fie initial transactions, Nen- monetery itemg-that-are measured in terms of fair value:
in.a foreign curiency ‘aré translated using'the exchangé rates as at the détes of fair value-measurement, The:- fore|gn
currency- gain-or loss on non-monetary items:afe. recogmsed in decordance with ihig prmmpie of recognition of gain or
loss anezng from change in the fair value- of an item (i.e. forelgn exchange differances on.the items, for which gain or
logs arising from change in. fair valye. are recegnlsed i other comprehenswe incame, or profit or loss, are also:
recognised within other corfiprehensive indome or profitor loss, respectively).

foreigi-exchange rates

Welghted average -exchange rates established by ihe Kazakhstan Stock Exchiange (“KASE“) are used as official
exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Weighted average exchange rates for the years-ended 31 December 2023 and 31. Decerber 2022 were a5 follows:

Tenge 2023 2022
usD 456.21 460.93
RUB 541 6.92
EUR 49322 485:29
CNY 64.45 68.61

At 31 December.2023 and 31 December 2022 the exchange rates established at KASE were as follows;

Tehge 31 December 2023 31 December 2022,
uspo 454.56 462.65
RUB 5.06 6:43
EUR 502.24 492 86
CNY 63,94 66,73




Kazakhstan-China Pipeline LLP _
Notes to the Financial Statements - 37 December 2023

Classification of lahilities as ctirfent of non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in' the statement of financial position based on currentfnon-current

classification. An-asset is current wijery it is:

. expe_cted to be reglised orintended'to be sold or consurned in the normal opérating cycle;

»  held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« expected 10 be realised within twelve mionths after-the reporti'ng pe'ric')d or

+ cash orcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seftle a tiability for at least months after
“the reportlng perigd.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabiiity is current when:

¢ it is.expected o be setiled in-normal operating cycle:

+ itisheld primarily for the purpose-of trading;

w  itisduetobe settled within twelve moriths after the reporting period, or

. -thefeais no urconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

The Cempany classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are.classified as non-current assets and liabiliies..

Fair value measurement principles

Fair valug is the: price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transactioh

between market participants at tha measurement. date. The fair value measurement is based on the’ presumptlon that
the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

» In the principat market for the asset or liability; or
« I the ahsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market_'-'for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is:measured using the assumptlons that market participants would use when
pricing the asset ar [|ab|||ty assuming that market participants act in their economic ‘hest interest.

A faif value measurement of & hon-financial asset takes into account a.market participant's. ablllty to generate: economic.
benefits by using the. asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to ancther market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation. tech’niques that are appropriate in the circumstances: and for which suﬂ' cient data are.
available to measure fair value,  maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the. ise of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value:is ‘measgured-or disclosed in the financial statements.are categonsed withiey
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant fo-the fair-value.
measurernent as a wholé:

e Level 1. quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical asssts or fiabilities.
« leve! 2: valuation techniques for which-the lewést fevel input that is significant to-the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly.

¢ Level 3: valuation techniques for which the. lowest level input that is S|gn|f icant-io the fair value measurément is
'unabservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financia! statements on.a recurring basis; the Company determines
~whether fransfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based onthe lowest
level input that is significant to.the fair value measurement as a whole) atthe end of each reportlng period.

Ateach reportlng date, the. Company analyses the movemenits in the values-of assets and zlabilltles which are required
io be re-measured or re-assessed as pér-the:Company's actounting policies. For this analy5|s the Company verifies
the major inputs applied in-the latest valuation by; agreeing the infommation i the valuation ¢omputation to confracts
and other relevant documents.

The Company in conjunction with the Company s external valuers also compares the change in the fair value-of each
"asset and hablltty with relévant extemal sources fo détermine whether the. change is reasonable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and squipment are injtially recognised- at cost. The subseguent accounting is at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and |mpa|rrnent losses recognised after revaluation date, if any.

‘According to accounting policy the Company engages independent experts once in three years to revaluate its propetty,
plant and equipment to their fair value. For property, plant and equipment; the fair value of which undergoes agntfcant
changes durlng the reporting period, at the date of preparation of the financial statements, an analy31s of changes in’
fair value is carried out and, if necessary, a revaluation of property, plant and equipment is reflected in the financial
statements.
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The revaluation surplus is recorded in other ‘comprehensive income and allocated to the increase in the' asset
revaluation réserve included in equity, except for its part which recovers a less from revaluation of the:same assets
reccgn:sed due to garfier revalugtion within profit or foss. The reva!uatlon loss is.recognised in profit and loss, excapt
for its part which directly. decreases the revaluation strplus on the same asset previously recognized within tha-asset
revaluation reserve,

The difference between depreclatlon calculated on the basis of the revalued carrying amount. of the asset and
deprematlon calculated on the basis of cost is transfemad annually from the asset revaliation resérve to retained.
garnings. In addition, accumulated” depremahon and impairment at the date” of revaluation is ehmlnated with a
simultaneous. decrease in the gross. carrying-amount of the asset,and then the net-amount is remeasured to the-
revalued amount of the asset. When an asset is dlsposed of, the: revaluatlon reserve relatsng 10 the particular asset
dlsposed of is-ransferred to retained eamings.

Such cost includes the cost of replacement of eqmpment parts angd bcrrowmg costs in case of long-term construction
projects if capitallsatlcn criteria. are met. [f it is necessary to replace significant components of property, plani-and
equipment at regular intervals, the Company récognisés such components as separate. assets with individual useful
fivesand deprecmtes them accordingly. Similarly, during a major inspaction, the costs-associated with it are fecognized
in-the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as.a replacement of equipment, if all recognition criteria are
met. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in-profit or loss as incurred. :

On mmal recognition the present value of expected costs of decommlssmmng of the asset after ite- US'e is'included |r'1

recogmsed in other comprehenswe mcome ‘For more information on.the reccgmsed prowsmn for asset retlrement and
land reclamation, please see 5|gn|ﬁcant accounting ]udgments estimates and assumptions (Note 4).

Depreciation is calculated on'a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful |I\_f.eS:

Years
Buildirigs and constructions 5-50
Machinery and equipmerit 3-30
Pipelines and other transportation assats 5-30
Other 2-30

Accordirig to the Company's accounting policy, construction in progress and land are not subject to depreciation.

An item of property, plant and-equipment and-any s:gmﬁcant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposat or
when no future-economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising an derecogrition of
the asset (calculated as the difference.betweén the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assét) is
included in the statement.of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Residual values, usefuf fives and méthods of depreuatmn of propeity; plant and equipment are analysed at each’
reporting year end and.adjustéd prcspec{wely. if appropriate.

Impairment of non-fi nanc:a:' assets:

The Company assesses al each reperting date whether there is any-indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when annual impairment. teshng for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assef's
recoverable-amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generatlng unit (CGU) is'the gréater of ité fair value
less costs to-self and its value in' use. Recoverable amount is; determined for an individual asset, except:-for the'cases
when an-assetdoes not generate cash inflows that are largely independent ofthe cash inflows of other assets.or groups:
of assets. When the carrying‘amount 6f an assetorCGL exceeds its’ reccverable cost, the asset is-considerad impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in- use the estimated future cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate:that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of maoney and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair valug:
less costs 1o sell, recent market iransactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, -an appropriate valuation model is Gsed. These calculations are confirmad by valuation multiples, quoted
prices for publicly traded shares or cther available fair value indicators;

The Company bases its impairment calculation on-detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's: cash generating units to which individual assets are allocated. These budgets
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash fiows after the fifth year,

Impairment fosses of conhnumg operations on inventories, are (Including for ampalrment) recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income in expense categories consistent with the function of the |mpa|red asset, except for a property
previcusly revalued when the revaluation was taken fo othercomprehénsive income. In this case, the impairment loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to.the amount of any previous revaluation.

An assessiment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that préeviously recognised
impairment.Josses may no longer exist or may have. decreased. If such indication exists, the Gcmpeny estimztes the
recoverable amount-of an asset or cash generating unit. A previously recognised.impairment loss is reversed only if
thiere has beén a change in the assumptlone used fo-determine the asset's recoverable cost since the iast wnpamnent'
loss was recogrised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
-:amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment joss
been recognised for the asset in prior years, in which case, the reversal is'treated as. a revaluation increase.
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Financial assets
initial recognition and measurement

On initiat recagnition;, & financial asset is classified.as subsequently measured at amortised cost, at fair value through’
gther comprehensive income (“OCI , and at fair value through profit or [oss.

The classification of financigl assets at initial recognition depends on the financial :asset's coritractual cash flow’
characteristics and the Company s business madel for managing them. ‘With the exception of frade- receivables that.do
not- contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient; the:
Company :nltlally measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a f'nanclal asset notat fair value through
profit or loss, fransaction costs. .

Trade receivables that do hot. contain a-significant financing. component or for which. the Company has applied the
prectlcal expedient are' measured at the transaction price detérmined undet IFRS 15.

The Company's business model! for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash fiows. The business model determinies whether cash flows will resdlt from. collectlng contractual cash
fiows, selling the financial assets, or both,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation. or
‘convention in the marketplace {regular way frades} are recognised on the:frade date, i.e., the date thatthe:Company
commitsto purchase or seli the asset.

Financial assets of the Company include cash and cash equwalents bank deposits, trade and other accounts
receivable:

Subsequert medsurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are.classified in four categories:
s financial assets measured at amortised cost {debt instruments);

» financial assets at fair value thraugh other Gcomprehensive income with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
{debt instruments);

« fihancial assets designated at fair value thfough ether comprehensive income with ne recycling of cumulative gains
and losses upon derecognition (equity ms’[rumenis),

e finaricial asséts at fair value through profit-orlgss.
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to'the Company. The Ccmpany measures financial assets at amortised costif both:
of the following conditions are met:

e afinancial asset is held within a business m'ad_el wﬁose- objective js to hold assets o colléct.contractual cash flows:
and

s its-contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that afe.solely payments of principal and interest.
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at d@mioriised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are subject to.
impairment, Gains and losses-are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired,

The Company's financial assets.‘al-amortised cost includes frade receivables, bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

Derecognition

A financial asset {of, where applicable & part of a financial asset or pafi of a group of similar financiai assets) is
derecognised from the stafément of financial position where?

e TheTights to receive cash flows from the asset have -Explred ;

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has:assumed an obltgatlon to pay
the received cash flows in full withott matarial delay 1o & third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substant_lally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither fransferred nor rétained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
1he assef.

When the Company has transferred its rights. to receive cash flows from an asset or-has enfered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and.to what-extent it has retained the risks.and rewards of ownership. When the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substanttalty ali the risks and réwards of the asset nor transferred control of the
-asset, the asset is recognlsed {o-the extent of the Company's continuing irivolvement in the asset. In that case, the'
Company also recognises an-associated liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights a_n_d obligations that the Company has. retal_n_e_d_

'antin_uihg'in\.fo_l\?ementjthat takes {_h_e form of a guarantee over the t'rans'ferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying ampunt of the asset and the maximum amount of cansideration that.the Company could be required.
{0 repay.
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Impairment of financial assels

The Company recognises. loss allowances far éxpected credit losses (ECL) on debt financtal assets that are not
measured at FVTPL..ECL arg based on'the difference betwean the contractual cash flows due'in accordancs with the
contract and all the cash flows that ‘the Company expects toreceive, discounted at an approximation of the.original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows. from: the sale of collateral held or. other credit
enhiancements that are integral te the coniractual terms.

Expected: credit losses are recognised in twa stages. For credit EXPOSUres for which there has.not been a smmﬁcant
increase in credit risk: since initial récognition, éxpected credit losses are provided for credit losses. that result from
default events that are. possible ‘within the next 12-months (a 12-morith expected credit: losses). For thase credit
exposures: for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 2 loss allowance is
required for credit logses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irespective of the. tlmmg of the. default (a
lifetime expected credit loss).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a-simplified approath incalculating expected credit losses. Thérefore, the
Company dees not track changes in-credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime expected.
credit losses at each reporling -date. The Company:has established a provision matrix that is baeed on its-historical
credit loss éxperience, adjusted for forward ~looking factors specific to the debtors: and the economic environiment,

The Company considers a financial asset {o be in default when. contractual payments are 90 days past. due. However,
in cerfain cases, the Company may also’ consider a financial asset o be in default when internal or external mformatlon
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding ‘contractual amounts in-full before taking into accourit
‘any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there.is no. reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities.
-Iniitial recognition and measurement

Ftnanclal liabilltres are clessﬁ' ed as. subsequently measured at arnomsed cost except for {i)fi nanclal Ilah|lities at fazr

positions in secunnes}, contlngent conelderatlen recogmsed by an acqmrer in.a busmess combination and ather
financial liabilities designated as.such at initial recognition arid (fi} financial guarantee contracts and lcan commitments.

All financia! liabilities are reéognised initially at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs {for loans,
borrowings and.payables).

The Company's finantial fabilifies comprise tradé and otherpayables and leans and borfowings.
Trade and other payables.

Trade payables are accrued when the . counterparty fulfils its econtractual ohllgatlons The Company recognises:
accounts payable at fair valie. Subsequently, accounts payable are carried at-amortised cost.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company After initial recognition, interest-bearing Joans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methoed. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the isablllhes are derecognised as well as through the effective inferest rate amortisation process.

Amortzsed cost'is caleulated taking info account premiums and discounts on ongmahon and fees, commissiens and
costs mtegrel to- the effective interest rate. The effective. interest rate amortisation is included as: finance costs in the
statement of prof it or loss and comprehenswe income.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer to Note 9.
Derecognition

A financial liability is- derecognised when liability is discharged.or cancéllad of expires, Wherran exsetlng financial liability
‘is replaced by another one from the same lender on eubstantlally different terms, or thé terms of an existing liability ‘are
substantialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecegmtlon of the original liability and the
recognition of a new Hability; and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is récognised in.the statement of
profit or joss and other compréhensive income.

‘Offsetting of financial instruments

‘Financial assets and liabilities are offset and:the net amount reporied in the statement of financial posmon only when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recogriised amounts, and there is an intention to either settle on a nit
basis, or to realise’ the asset and settle the liability simultansously.

Inventofies
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost includes ait costs incurred in the normal course of business in bringing each product to its present location and
-condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the drdinary course of business, less estimated costs of coripletion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the safe,
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Cost of inventories-is determined by using FIFO basis.

Cash and cash. equivalents

Cash and cash: eguivalents.in the statement of ﬁnanmal position comprise cash on hand, cash at bank, short-term
deposits.and other highly liquid investments with' a maturity of threg mionths. or Iess

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank deposits: with
maturities of less than 3 months as defined above, net of outstandlng bank. overdraﬁs

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income includes unwinding of discount, interest income on deposms loans receivable and other lnvestments

Finance costs includé interest expense on loans, interest expense.from unwinding of discount on provisions for assets
retirement obligations, etc. Finance income and costs alsé include foreign exchange gains and losses-Telated to loans
and borrowings.. Forsign exchange gains and fosses related {0 other financial instruments.are recognised: in- cther
income and expense.

Interest income and expense are recognised on a-time basis using the effective interest rate method.-All interest and
other axpenses -attributable to borrowings are recognised within fi nance costs unless such expenses are refated to
borrowmgs aimed to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment, In this case, such expenses are
capitalised irt the period required for construction of an asset and brmgmg it-forintended use.

Provigions.

Provisicns are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {Iegai or constructive) as a result of a past
avent; itis probable that an-outflow of resources embaodying economic benefits will be required to. settle the obllgatlon
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the. obligétion. Where the Company . expects some orall of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example under an.insurance contract, thé reéimbursement is recognlsed asa: separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense retating 10-any provision is recognised in profit
and loss, net of any reimbursement. The Company records a provision on asset retirement and land reculivation
obligation.

Asset retirement and land recultivation obligation costs are provided af the present value of expected costs to settle
the’ obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the. particutar asget, with. the
exception of property, plant and equipment carried at fair valug, in which case the amount of the: prowsmn is credited
to the reduction of the property, plant and eqmpment revaluatlcn reserve in.equity. Ariincrease/decrease in a lighility
dueto a change in the discount rate or a change in the. expected outflows of the Companys resources is.taken info
account as @ change: in estimated values. If the reduction in“the: liability exceéeds the carrying. amount of the. asset
retirement obligation, the excess is recognised in the statement of Pprofit-or loss and other comprehensive income.,
Increases:in-the liability over time-are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an expense.

The ¢ash flows are discounted at a-current pre-fax rate that reflects the risks specific 1o 'the provisions for asset
retirement and Jand recultivation obligation. The. unwinding of the: dlscount is expensed as incurred and recogmsed in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as a finance cost. The estimated futuire costs of asset
retifement-and land recultivation are reviewed annually and. adjustad as appropriate. ‘Changes in'the estimated future
costs-or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from. cost of revaluation reserve for property, plant and
equipment.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company's-activities are rnain[y related to the transportahcn of of through main pipefines an the territory of the
Republic of Kazakhstan. Revenue from contracts with customers is recagnised when control of the services is
transferred to the customer at an amount that refiects the consideration to which the Company expects:to be entitlad
in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the. principal .in ‘its revenue.
arrangements, because-it typically controls the services. before transferring them to the customer.

Transporta tion-of:ofl-

The Company recognises ‘the proceeds from the: provision of o trarisporiation. over time; the progress of service
provision is ineasurad based on the actual volumes of services provided at the date of the assessment. Custamérs
make a 100% advance payment within 5 calendar days from the date of invoice.

(i) Variable consideration

The variable consideration is absent in contracts with customers, due to the absence of discounts, credit payment,
concessions in price, incentives, bonuses for results.or other similar items.

(i) Significant financing component

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in IFRS 15,
Company does not adjust the promised. amount of consideration far the effects of a significant firancing component if
it expects, at contract inception, that the:period between the transfer of the. promised good or service to the customer
and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one yearor less.

(X
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Taxes
Current income tax

Current income ‘tax -assets and. liabilities.are measured at the amount gxpécted te bé recovered from or: paid to-the.
taxation authorities.

The tax rates and tax laws applicable to compute the amount are-those. that are enacted or substantl'urelyr gnacted at
the reporting date in the countries: ‘where the Company operates-and generates taxable prof t.

Current incorne tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recogmsed in equity rather than in profit and. foss.
Management of the Company: regularly @valuates positions reported in tax returns where applicable tax regulations are-
subject fo interpretation and éstablishes provisions whera appropriate. .

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the IJab:ilty method on temporary-differences at the reptrling date befween the tax bases
of assefs and Ilablhtles and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all taxable temporary differences, except where:

o -the deferred tax Ilab|||iy arises on initial recognition of goadwill or. of an. assetor llablhty in a fransaction that is not
a business combination and, at the tifme of the transaction,-affects netther the accounting profit nor taxable- profit
or loss.

» in respect of taxable temporary differances associated with investments in-subsidiaries, associatés and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of ifie femporary differences can be conirolled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future,

Deferred tax assets are- recognised forall deductibie temparary differences, unused tax losses, and unused tax credits
fo the extent that it is probabls that future {axable profits will be available against which the: deductible temporary
differenices, unused tax losses, and unused tax credits can bé utilised, -except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises on initial recognition of 2n asset
-or liability in'a' transaction ihat is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
‘accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in submdlanes assoviates and interésts
in joint ventures, deferred fax assets are recognised only fo the -extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised:.

The-carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reassessed at each repérting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer prabable that sufficient taxable preﬁt will be available to allow ali of part of the- deferred tax assetito be Ltilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each. reporting date and recognised o ihe extent that it has
becormie. probable that future taxable profits will be avaitable against which they can bs used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tex rafes that are-expected to apply in the year-when the asset
-is realised or the liability is settled, based oni tax ratés (and tax-laws) that have been-enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Ceferred tax re[ahng to items. recognised outside profit or loss i is recognised outside. profit or gss. Deferred tax items.
are:recogrised in correlatlon to.the underlying. transaction-eitherin other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities. are offset if there-is fegally levied right to offset current tax assets and. [labmtles ‘and
they relate ta income taxes levied by the same tax authority on- thé same taxable- entity.

Tax benefits, which have been acqwred as a result of business-combination, but which do not meet-a criterion for
separate recognition as at that date, dre recognised subsequently if new information becomes available on changes in
facts and circumstances. The adjustment.is fredted as a reduction in goodwm (as long as it does not éxceed goodwill)
if it was:incurred during the. megsurement period unless it is recognised in profit or loss.

Valile-added tax (VAT)

VAT related to sales is payable to the Kazakhstani budget when goods are shipped or services are rendered. Input
VAT can be offset against otitput VAT upon the receipt of a tax i invbice from a suppiier,

Revenue, expenses and assets are récognised after deduction of VAT, except for instances, when VAT ingurred on
the purchase of assets or services is not reimbursed by the tax authority; in this case VAT is recognised as & part of
costs for-asset acqmsmons or as a part of expenses.

Tax legislation allo_\._vs- the.seﬂlement.of-VAT ona net basis, Accordingly, VAT related to sales and purchases unsettled
at the.reporting date is stated in the statement of financial position on a net basis.

‘Due to-specifics of tax legislation and the Company's operations, & certain part of input VAT can be carried. over into
subsequent years. Such portion of VAT is classified as lorig-term asset and assessed for impairment and cons;dered
as'a corporate asset allocated to existing CGU.

‘Receivables and payables are stated including VAT. Thé net amount of sales tax reécoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included as part of VAT recoverable, other taxes prepaid-and other taxes payable in the statement.
of financial position.
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Going'concem
Management has prepared these financial statements on a. going concern basis, which means that dssets will be
realised and liabilities ‘wilt be setfled in the normal course of business for the foreseeable future.. Management's

jutlgment is based oh: ¢onsideration: of the Company s financial standlng. current plans, profi tal:uhty of:operations. and
access to finaricial resources, ard ah- analysis of the impatt of the current position on the Company's future operations.

Adoption of new or revised standards and interprétations

The;foll'owi'ng_.am_en_d,e_d standards became effectivefrom 1 January 2022 or after this date, butdid not have any material

impact onthe Company:

o Deferred Tax refated to Assets and Liabilities arising fromi a Single Transaction (Amendmerits to IAS 12) {issued
on 7 May 2021, effective for arinual periods beginning on.or after 1 January 2023).

o Classification of Liabilities as Gurrent or Non-Current — (Amendments fo IAS' 1) {issued 23 January 2020 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022).

» Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Gurrent — bringing forward the effective. date — {(Amendments to
1AS 1) (issued on 15 July: 2020 ang effective for annual periods beginning on or-after 1 January 2023).

» Amendments io [AS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates: {issued on 12- February 2021 and effective for annual
pericds beginning on or after: 1 January 2023).

¢ Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments fo IAS T.and IFRS Practice Staternent 2) (issued on 12 February
2021 and effective for annual pericds begihning on or after 1 January 2023).

e Amendments to IFRS 17 and Ameridmérits to IFRS 4 (issued on 25 June 2020 and effective for annual periods
beginning on‘or after 1 Jariuary 2023).

e Transition option for insurers iri applying IFRS 17 — Amendments to IFRS 17 (issued on 9 December 2021 and
effective for annuat perieds beginriing on or after 1 January 2023).

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted; however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparlng these financial
staternents.

*  Supplier Finance Arrangements {Amendmentsto IAS 7. and IFRS 7). The amendmentis introduce new disclosures
regarding suppher financing arrangements that help users of financia! statements assess the impact of such
arrangements on the entity's liabifities and cash flows and on the. ertity's exposure to liquidity risk. The
amendmerits are effective for annual periods beginritng on orafter 1 January 2024,

o Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current and Non- Current. Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments fo
1AS 1), Arnendments issued in 2020 and 2022 seek to clarify the requirements. for determining whether a liability
is Gurrent or non-current and &lso establish new disclosuré requirements for non-current liabilities with covenants,
The amerndrrients are &ffective for annual periods beglnnmg on.or after 1 January 2024.. :

s lLease Lfabmty ih @ Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16). The amendments are effective for .annual
periods beginning on or after1 January 2024.

o lackof Exchangeabmry {Amendmenrs to IAS 21). The amendments are &ffective for annual periodsbeginning on
or after 1 January 2025.

4  Significant account’ing-judgem‘ent- estimates and assumpfions

The preparation.of the Company's financial statements requires management to make- judgemerits, estimates and
- assumptions that affect thé reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the distlosure of
contingent liabflities, -at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertalnty about these -assumptions and estimates
could result in-cutcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount.of the asset or liability affected in
“future periods,

Other disclosures refating to the Company’s.exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

e potential and contingent liabilities (Note 18);

= sensitivity analysis disclosures {Note 18},

The key assumptions concemlng the future and otherkey sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a ‘material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within‘the rext
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on pararneters available when
the financial statements were prepared Existing circumstances and assumptions aboutfuture developments, however,

may change due to market thanges or cifcumstances arising beyond the cantrol of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful Jife of property, plant and eguipmernit

Assessment of useful lives of properiy, plant-and equipment is subfect to judgement based onthe management's
experience of using similar assets, Future economic benefits from assets are mainly gaired through their usage.
Nevertheless, other factors such as technical and commercial obsolescence gften lead to decrease of economic
‘benefits to be derived from the assets. Management assesses the remaining useful life of the assels based on their
current technical conditions and expected period dunng which these assets will bring such benefits to the Company.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company checks the: canylng value of its property, plant and equipment to identify lmpalrment indicators of such
assets. The cartying value of property,: plantand. equipment and other non-financial assets is tested- for impairment in-
cass.arny indicators’ |dent|ﬁed thatthe carrying value of the-asssts may not. be recoverable

When conducting an. |mpa|rment test, the recoverable amourit is determined as the higher of .an asset's value in use-
(i.e. the net present value of the discounted forecasted cash. flows for the. corresponding cash generating unit)-and fair
value net of the cost to.séll (the amount that can be redeemed as a result of selling the asset ar‘a cash generating unit
ih an-arm's length fransactions entered voluntasily by knowledgeable non-reiated parties, fess the cost of disposal).
Where there is no binding. sale and purchase agreement-ar active:market, fair value less costs to sell'is. based on the
best information ‘available to reflect the.amount the Company could receive for the cash- generating unit in‘an -am's-
length transaction.

A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable.group of assets that generates cash inflows that are. largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or assets grougs. (CGUs). For the purpose of the analysis of

impairment. indicators and in case-impairment test is required, management concluded that all of the Company's
property, plant’ and eqmpment is @ separate cash generatlng unit,

The estimates used for impairment reviews are based on approved budgets, forecasted volumes of ol transported and
forecasted tariffs, modified as appropriate fo meet the requirements of tAS 36 !mpa.'rment of Assets Future cash flows
are based on:”

» forecasted volumes of the oil ransported;

» forecasted tariffs for the transportation of transit oil, export and: domestic markets, and

s Tuture costs of production, ce_piial expenditures and operating expenses.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had conducted an analysis-and found no impairment indicators.
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

‘The Company reccgnises property, plant and equipment at revalued amount. in 2022, the Company engaged an
independent professional appraiser; AAR ~ Advisory and Research LLP, together with Otsenka i Expertiza LLP
(Evaluation and Expertise LLP) (hereinafter jointly referred to as the “_apprals_er”) to evaluate its property, plant and:
equipment as.of 1 Qctober 2022, The appraiser has a professional qualification and relevant experience.

Input data for determining the fair value of property, plant and equipment refer to Level 3'in the fair value h:erarchy
(unobservable inputs).

Valyation method was:at the first stage based on the valuation of the- depreciable replacament cost (hereinafier — cost
approach“) Cost approach is used if the-valuation object is new ofis under construction, it relates.to objects. with a
limited market (specialised assats); for which'it is not possibie to obtain infomation on sales prices: (m the absence of
an active market),

The majority of the Companiy's propeity is specialised, ifs ‘alternative use for other types of activity is impossible. The
transactions with asgets similar to ‘evaluated ones are.absent.

In usmg-the ‘cost method, certain key elements were taken info account; such as:

understanding specifics of the asset, its function and environment;

e review and analysis to determinie the remaining. useful fife’ (to evaluate physical wear) and economi¢ useful life of
the asset;

o knowledge of the requirements of financial and economic activities (fo evaluate: functional or technicat
obsolescence});

©  knowledge. of property, plant and equipment by access to available market data; kriowledge of construction
technologies and materials {to evaluate the cost of a modem equivalent asset); and

o sufficient knowledge {o determing the impact of economic/external obsoléscence on the cost.

As part of the valuation, the appraiser cenduicted & test for adequate profitability using the income approach in the
-analysis of economic-depreciation of spec:talssed items of property, plant and ‘equipment of the Company, as a result of
which the value in use was determined at Tenge 222,414,036 thousand.

The adequate profitability was calculated by evaluating of the value in use. In calculation of the value in use, the
following assurmptions were used:

Rate, % 16.51%
Remaining useful life of the primary asset “Atasu-Alashankou pipeline” 14 years
Remaining useful life of the primary asset *Kenkiyak-Kumkol pipeline” 17 years
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Amortised replacementcost-was lower than the obtained valuein use, accordingly,. it was.recorded as fair value of the
property; plantand eqmpment of the Company. The results of evaluation of the value.in use.are sensitive-to projections
of scopes of sales of the services provided, level of tafiff for services prowded and fluctuations in the USD' exchange
rate:

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge Increase/decraase Impact on value in use
Change in volumés of fransportation +10.00%/(10.00%) 40,286,141/(40,414,943)
Change in-production cost +10.00%#(10.00%) (12,106,592)/12,049,580
Change-in tariffs +10.00%#(10.00%) 40,368,203/(40;! 500 876)
Change'in discount rate 1 50%:"{1 50%) (12, 412 ,623)/13, 813, 338

As.a result of revaluation, the net amount of reversal of impairment on all groups of property, pIant and equipmerit of
Tenge 260,183 thousand was allocated o the proﬁt and loss account, and the amount of Tenge 22,987,858 thousand
was allocated to the revaluation provision in equity.

Accumulated depreciation was allocated to the carrying amount of property, plant.and:equipment, and the net amount
was reduced to'revaluéd cost of property, plant and equipment.

 As at 31 December 2023, management reviewed indicators of changes in the- fair value of the Company's property.
plant and equipment. Based on the rasuits of the analysm it was. revealed that the influence on the fair value of the’
‘Company's property, plant and: equipment by such factors as price indices, exchange rate differences and capitalised
modemisation was insignificant. No external or internal sighs of egonaritic impairment of- property, plant and equ1pment
were identified. Thus, a revaluation of the Company's property, plant and equipment as of 31 December 2023 is not
required.

Provision for decommissioning obligation for pipeline and its facilities and land recultivation

According to the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan Or the Main Pipeline which came into force on 4. .July 2012, the
Company has a legal obligation fo decommission its oll pipelines at the end of their operating life ang restore the land
to its original condition. Activities on land recultivation are carried out when replacing the pipelines at the end of their.
useful life.

In addition, in accardance with Environmental Code of Republic of Kazakhstan, upon shutdown of operatzon of facilities
that. have a negatwe |mpact on the enwronment faczllty operators are reqmred to ensure ellminatmn of consequences
in-addifion to the linear part of 1he mam pipelme hias other facilifies necessary to ensure operatlon of: the plpeltne By
the decision of the Ministry of Eca[ogy, ‘Geology and Natural Resources of Republic of Kazakhstan such fagilities.of
the Company were classified as Category |l facilities that have a modérate negative impact on the environment.

Accordmgly, the: obligation on assets: retirement and land recultivation includes estimated ¢osts of- taking necessary.
_meastres in relation to these facilities.

The provision for asset: retlrement and land recultivation obhgatlons is estimated. based. on 1he valug of the work fo
decommission and rehablhtate land calculated by the Company in accordance with the technical regulations of the
Republ[c of Kazakhstan

The. movements of provisions for assef retirement obligations and land recultivation are as foliows:.

in thotsarids of Kazakhitani. Tenge 2023 2022
At 1 January _ _ _ 11,282,742 12,122,659
Recognition of estimates-attributéd to the value of property; plant and

equnpmant - 2,636,566
Change in estimates-charged to other comprehensive income. (3,423,523) {4,323,246)
Unwinding of d|s_count 984,298 846,763
At-31 December 8,843,517 11,282,742

The amount.of provision was determined at the end of the reporting: period using:thé projected inftation rate for the
expected period of fulfilment of the cbligation, and the discount rate at the end of the réporting period which are
presented below:.

31 December 2023

Pipelines decommissioning expense per 1 km for:Kenkiyak-Kumko! oil pipeline: Tenge 9,064 thoeusand
Pipefines decommissioning experise per 1 km for Atasu- Alashankou oil pipeline Tenge B,362 thousand.
‘Discount rate for Kenkiyak-Kumkol oil pipeline and facilities 11.33%
Discount rate for Atasu-Alashankou oil pipeling and facllities 11.53%
Inflation rate far Kenkiyak-Kumkel oil pipeline and facllitiss . 5.53%
Inflation rate for Atasu-Alashankou oil pipeline and facilities 5:43%
Pefiod of fulfilment of the obligation for Kenkiyak-Kumkol ol pipeline and facllities 18 years
Pericd of fuffilment of the obligation for Atasu-Alashankou ol pipeline.and facllltles 13.years:
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The following data and assumptions were- used to calculate the provision as at 31 December 2022:
31 December 2022 _

Pipelines decommissiofing-expense per 1 km for KenKivak-Kumkol oil pipeline. Tenge. 7,740 thousanid
Pipelines decommissioning expense per 1 km for Atasu-Alashankou. oil pipeline Tenge 7, 740 thousand.
Discount rate foi Kenkivak-Kumkel ofl pipeline ; andfacilities 10.41%
Discount rate for Atasu-Alashankcu cil pipéline and facilities 10.41%
Inflation rate for Kenkiyak-Kumkol-oif pipeline and facilities "6.04%.
tnflaticn rate for Atasu-Alaskiankou:oll pipeliine @nd facliities. -6.04%
Period of fulfilment of the obligation for Kenkwak Kumkol ¢if pipéfine and facilities 17 years
“Periad of fulfilment: of the ohligation for Atasu- Alashankou 6il-pipéline and fagillties 14'years

The discount rafe is based on the risk-free US treasury bonds, adjlisted on long-term inflation rate and.country risk.

-Assessing the cost of rehabiiitation of the environment is sui_Jjec't to potential changes in environmental requirements
and interpretations of the law. Furthermare, uncertainties in the estimates of these costs include potential changes in.
regulatory requirements, aliemative dlsposal and recovery of damagéd land and levels of discount and. infiation rates,
and the time, when  such obligations will be due,

Sensitivity analysis of asset retirement and land recultivation cbligation for the changein significant assumptions as at
31 December 2023 is as follows:.

(Décreaselincrease Increase/{decrease)

In-thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge inrate in liability
Discount rate (0.5%) 564,643
+0.5% (528,047}
Inflation rate {0.5%} {571,937}
' +0.5% 608,927

Positive or negative unbalance

According to'the National standard of the Republic of Kazakhstan “Main oil plpehnes The Instruction for the calculation
of oil" 8T RK 1474-20186, the Company defermines the. actual presence. of oil in the ¢il pipelines and compares the:
actual volume of oil with accounting data, for the purposes of safeguarding the oil (Yinventory count") once:a year as
of 24:00 Moscow time on 31 Dacember. During the: inventory count, the maiss.of oil is determined in-the linear part of
the main il pipelines and in the: technologrcal pipelines: The weight of oil mass is determingd: as the product of the.
average oii denstty. adjusted to-an actual temperature and pressure: at the site using: cosfficients dependmg on the
average pressure and-average. {emperature of oil‘in the plpellne

Différences: associgted with an error in the balancé. of.delivered and received il are-determined as-the difference.
between the incoming and outgoing parts of thié balance (unbalance) and appear in {he. form:-of strpluses (positive’
unbalance) and shortages (negative unbalance) and are reflected in a separa{e line of the éxecutive balance.

The Company deés.not recognise. positive unbalance-in financial siatements.on the basis'that the Company.does not
have ¢ontrol over the asset due to the absence of a Iegally enforceable right fo the unbalance. By the Order of Tectinical
_Regulatton and Metrology Committee of the: Ministry of Trade and Integratlcm of the Republlc of Kazakhstan of
22 December 2024 No.17-HK amendments were-'made.to ST-RK 14742018 “Main oil pipelines, The Instruction for the’
calculation. of oil”, effective from-1 March 2024. The amendments- provide that surpluses {positive. unbalance) items are-
to be entered in the books by an owner of a main: pipeline-as its -own ofl, and accordingly, shortages (negahve
unpalance) are covered by their own ofl, according to'the procedure- estabhshed by the internal regulations ofthe main
pipeline owner. The Company will continue géttliing the issué of positive- unbalance.of il accimulated in the Company 5
ail plpehnes As atthe date of the signing of these fi nancia! statements, the Company s management was in the procéss
of reviewing the. above: changes. Currently, the_Compa_ny s management cannot assess with reasonable assurance the
potential impact of this circumstance on-the Gompany's financial positian.

5 Balances and transactions. with related parties

Definition of rélated parties i$ presented in'|AS 24 Reiated Party Disclosures. The partiés are considered 10 be related
if one‘ party has the ability to control the other party, is under common control, or may exercise significant influence
overthe other party in’ mak:ng financiaf or aperational decisions of exercises general canfrol aver it.

In considering each possible related partyr relationship, attentlon |s directed to the substance of the refationship, not
merely the legal form. Information about immediate parerit. companies and parties exercising Ultimate contral over the:
Company is disclosed in Note 1.

For the puiposes of these financial statéments, related partiés of the Company include owners, their subsidiaries and
entities under common controlfsignificant influence of he owners. '
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Batances on transactions with.related parties: as at 31 December 2023 comprise as follows:

Entities under-
commion coptrol!’

‘significant’
influence of.
Parent  Samruk-Kazyna
In thousarids of Kazakhstani Tenge companies and CNPC Total
Accounts receivable from related parties 5,214 - 5,214
Advances received for oil transporiation from refated
parties - 3,848,963 3,848,963
Accounts payabie to related parties 1,473,632 100,806 1,574,438
The income and expense items on transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as
follows:
Entities.under
common control/
“significant-
influence of
_ _ Parent  Samruk-Kazyna _
in thousands.of Kazakhstani Tenge : companies and CNPEC “Total
Revenue- 55,868 31,013,298 31,069,166
Expenses: ’ _
- Qil-pipeling servicing 12,257,586 1,068,534 13,326,120
- Capital expenditures - 5,384 5,384
Otherservices 17,458 306,216 323,674
Balances on transactions with related parties as.at 31 December 2022 comprise the followinig:
Entities under
comimon cantrol!
mgmf‘ icant
influence of
Parent  Samtuk: -Kazyfia _
In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge companies and CNPC Tofal
Accounts réceivable from related parties 6,224 46,745 52,969
Advances received for ail fransportation-from related ' o _
parties L 8,613,692 3,613,602
Accournts payable fo related parties 1,223,099 285-852' 1 508-951
The income and expense items under transactions with reldted parties for the year ended:31 December 2022-ars as
follows:
Entities under
common control/-
significant
influence.of
Parent  Samruk-Kazyna
In.thousarnds of Kazakhstani Tenge companies and CNPC Tofal
Revenus 159,495 31,226,175 31,385,670
Expenses:
- Qil-pipéline servicing 11,640,000 1,073,989 12,713,998
- Other services 88,550 451,809 540,359

In addition 1o 'i{s transactions with CNPC and KMG and: theit subsidiaries, the Company has transdctions W|th other
government:controfled companies, including those refated to bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and loans and
borrowings as disclosed in Notes 7; 8, 9 and 19: Thesé transactiohs are carried out in the ordinary course of business:

ofthe Company on terms comparable to these of other-entities not contrdlled by the government

Remuneration t6 members of the Management Board

The total amount of remuneration. accrued 1o key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2023 was

Tenge 193,352 thousand (for the year ended 31 December 2022: Tenge 220,589 thousand).

Payments to key management personnel primarify corisist of salary costs and benefits established by contracts and

internal regulations of the Company.
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December of 2023 and 34 December 2022 are as follows:
Machinery

In thousands.of Buildings ang and’ Other Construction:

Kazakhstani Tenge Land _construcifons equipment Pipelina vehicles Other __in-progress Total
‘Revajued cost at L o ) L ) .

1 January 2022 78,157 43508,642 49,458,112 138,795,861 218834 1,671,557 563569 236,394,723
Adgitions. - 2,636,566 264463 R T 28,817 606,350 3,536,225
Transfers - 146.980 305,632 - . 137,792 {690,404, -
Disposals, - T {515) (414) - {2324y (17,857} (21,210
Decrease inhistorical

cost by wilting off

accumulated

epreciztion updn . _ . n _ y

révaluation w (8:443,340)  (14,175,664) (22,739,208) (159,543} (755,873} - (46,273,626}
Revaluation of C ) ) ’ )

property, plant-and ) ) ) o o .

equlpment 16,568 1979,448 15,418,693 5,198,847 155,224 219,078 ~ 22987858
Impairment recognised o ' ' '

in-the stalement of

compreherisive ) ) )

income - {1,710,036) (419,623) - - (160,473) (26,446}  (1,816,578)
Reversal of impalrment i ‘

recognised n the

statement of

comprehensive.

income - 1,073,830 936,740 4,542 34,608 17,041 2,066,761
Revalued cost'at ) o o L . ) L .

31 Decamber 2022 94,725 39,692,090 51,787,759 118,759,630 249,113 1,155,615 5,135,221 216,874,153
Additions - - 250.015 1,569 . - 9873 -3,119,142 3,380,599
Transfers - 330,001 4,522 089 759,105 {4,832) 31:841 {5,638,204) . -
Disposals - {2,075) {79.354) {16;324) {278) {7.768). . {105,809}
Revalued cost at ) _ ) ) ) ) ) )

31 December 2023 94,725 40,020,016 56,480,499 115,503,280 244,003 4,189,569 2,616,158 220,748,943
Aceumulsted.

dapredlation-and

impairmentat _ . o L
1 January 2022 - {6:252.784)  (10,739,.392)  (17,150,980) {128,895) 524,813 (986,008} (35,783,362).
Depregiation chiarge- - (2,806,929)  (4,089,833) (7,492,073 {49,757) (315,043): - [15,713,545)
Write-off of ) ) .

accumulated

depreciation upon o . S
_revaluation - 8,443,340 14475664 22,739,206 159,543 755,873 - 48,273,626
Depreclation en ' ' '

disposals - - 52 80 - 2,324 - -2,736
Accumulated

depreciation:and

impairment at

31 December 2022 - (706,383)  (1,523;208)  {1,903,787)} {20,109} {81,659) {986,088)  {5,221,245)
Depreciation charge - {2,844,272)  {6,107,323)  (7,477,9689) {79.653) {d457,803) ~  (16,867,014)
Depraciation on ; ' ' ) o ]

disposals - - - 2,832 - - 5,696 - 8,628
Accumulated-

deprectation.and

Impalrment at )

31 December 2023 - {3,550,655) {7,627,600)- {9,381,750) {98,762} {433,768) (986,008) (22,079,631)
As at 31 December

2022 o o . iy . ) L . -
Revalued cost 94,725 39,692,090 51,787,759 118,759,630 249,113 1,155,615 5,135,221 215,874,153
Accumulated ' ' ' '

depreclation.and

impairmant. - (706,383)  (1,523,209)  (1903,787) (20,109) (81,659) (988,098)  (5,221.245)
Carrying amount 84,725 35,985,707 50,264,550 116,835,843 229,004 1,013;_956- 4,149,123 214 ,652,908
At 31 December 2023 ) ) ) ]

Revalyed cost 94,725 40,020,016 56,480,499 119,503,880 244 002 1,189,561 2,616,159 220,148,943
Accumulated

depreciation and. o . ) ] o ] L .

impairment - (3,550,658)  (7,627,600)  (9,38%,750) {99,762) {433,768) (986,088)  (22,079,637)
Carrylng amount 04,725 36,468,361 48,852,899 110,122,230 144,241 755,795 1,630,061 198,068,312
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Depreciation charge

in thousérids of Kazakhstani Tenge Note- 2023 2022 _
Cosl of sales _ 13 16,722,334 15,605,967
‘General and administrative expenses 14 144,680 107,678
Total d'epreciatibn charge’ 16,867,014 15,713,645

Information an.property, plant-and equipment, i carried ‘at Kistorical cost, is presented below:

_ L Machinary .
In thousands of Kazakhistani Buildings and ’ ‘ang’ ‘Other. Construction
Tange- ' Land constructions  equipmerit Pipeling __ vehicles. Other _ in-progress, Total
At 31 December 2022 _ _ - _ o L _ .
Cost ) 5361 51215906 71,865,483 142,958,258 ‘BT4175 2,772,868 5,161,667 274,751,716
Accumulated depreciation ] L : o e o
and impairment - {24205:588) (47.047.920) (63,034,975) (844.577) (1.874.207) (1,012,544} (137.807.815)
Carrying amount’ 536% 26,922,323 24,917,554 79,921,283 ‘28,598 898,661 ‘4,149,123 136,843,501
At 31 Décember 2023
Cosl ' 5361 50,831,918 76,431,378 139,382,045 840,585 2,685,011 2,642,606 272,718,014
Accumulated depreciatjon o . . i e
‘and impairment - {(26,295.897) (49,509,350} (66,563,321) (618,103) (2,012,825) (1,012,544) (146,102,04D)

Carrying:amaunt 5361 24,636,021 26,832,028  72,818.724 22492 GT2186 1,630,062 126,616,874

7 Bank deposits
Bank deposits as.at 31 December 2023 and 31 Dacember 2022 are as follows:

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge. 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Term deposits with maturity of less than 12 months 23,329,356 21,749,478
Short-term interest réceivable. 201,715 11 2','7_‘{_ 1
l.ess: allowance for credit losses {3,391) {5.852)
Total bank deposits 23,527,680 21,856,337

Asg at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 deposiis are placed in US Doflars. The effactive interest rate was
G:8% per annum in 2023 (0.8% perannum-in 2022}. The term of deposits is-more than 3 months.

8 Cash and-cash equivalents

Cash andcash equivalents at 31 Decembier 2023 and 31 December 2022 ére as follows:

In.thiousands of Kazakhstani Tenge 31 December 2023 31 .December 2022
Cash on-saving accounts-in Tenge 13,192,272 648,270
Gash in bank in-foreign curency 10,623,044 13,987,697
Cash in barik in Tenge 14,837. 3,232,503
Cash on-corporate cards 5,802 3,303
Less: allowance for credit losses (88) (289)
Total cash.and.cash equivalents 23,836,867 17,871,484

Cash in foreign currency is denominated in the following foreign currencies:

In théiusands of Kazakhstani Tenge 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
LIS Dallar 10,354,187 13,887,328
Chinese Yuan 269,757 108,369
Total cash in bank in foreign currency 10,623,944 43,987,607
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g Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings ofthe Company as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December2022 are as follows:

in thousands of Kazakhstan/ Tenge 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Gument portion of loans 32,842,895 33,900,576
Non-current portion of loans - 32,197,304
Total loans and borrowings 32,842,895 66,007,880

Cﬁanges in liabilities resuiting from findncing activities
Chénges'in financial lizbilities for 2023 and 2022 are ag follows:

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge Note 2023 2022
At 1 January 66,097.880 139,010,237
Cash flows (35,330,597 (87,264,738)
Interest expenses 16 ' 3,633,022 4,593,304
Capitalised interest. 33,262 -
Changes in foreign exchange rates 16 {1,306,490). 10;177,090
Withhalding CIT '(28_.4,1.82_) (418,010)
At 31 December 32,842,895 66,097,880

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and Industridl and Commercial Bank of China in Almaty JSG

On 27 June 2018 the Company signed a loan -agreement with the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in Almaty JSC, acting as an agent. - The Ioan amount was
US Dollar 540 miltion {equivalent to Tenge 191,756,400 thousand at the exchangeé rate on that date)'for 6 years with
‘the possibility of early repayment. The loan purpose was fo refinance the loahs receivied from Industiial and Commercial
Bank of China and ING Bank N.V. and Industrial and-Commerciat Bank of China and Industrial and Commiercial Bank
of China in Almaty JSC. The Company has incured cost on loan amrangement in the -amount of
Tenge 1,715,867 thousand {equivalent of US Dollar 5,010 ihousand)

As part.of the transition from LIBOR. to the secured ovemight financing rate-- SOFR (Secured Ovemight Flnanclng-

Rate), the Company signed the Additional Amendment and Restatement Agreement to the. Loarn’ Agreement with the:
Industrial and Commerciat Bank of China and the Industrial and’ Commercial Bank-of China JSCin Almaty: The parties
agreed to amend and restate the Loan Agreement under the terms of the Agreement to replace the L[BOR rate with
the SOFR rate.

The effective rates applied for 2023 and 2022 were 8.57% and.4.71%, respectively.

During 2023 the Company repaid US dollar 70,000 thousand {equivalent to Tenge 31,694,250 thausand st the date of
‘payment} in accordance with the schedule of repayment of the principal debt-under the Loan Agreement with Industrial
and Commercial Bank of Ching Jolnﬂy with-Industrial and Commercial Bank of China In Almaty JSC, acting as an agent

Industrial and Gommercial Bank of China and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in Aimaty JSC are ultimately
controlied by the Govemnmierit of the Peaple's: Republic: of China.
10 Liabilities for oil transportation under contracts with third paities

Liabilities for oil transper'ta'tlon under contract with third parties as at'31 December 2023 mainly compnee -advances
‘received for the transportation of transit oil from Petroleum Company “Rosneft’ QJSC in the amount of-
Tenge 4,214,987 thousand (31 December 2022: Tenge 4,285,310 thousand).

Revenue recognised in refation fo liabilities under contracts with customers:

In the current reporting petiod, revenue in the amount .of Tenge 8,313,639 thousand was recognised in respect of
obligations under oil transportatlon contracts at the beginning of the reporting period (2022
Tenge 7,794,287 thousand). :
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11 Other payables and accrued liabilities
Other payables and accrued liabifities as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

In thotisands of Kazakhstani Tenge 31 Dacember:2023 31 December 2022
Accrued liabilities 1,047,210 741,751
Cuirent.estimated liabilities for employeé benefits 588,003 ‘667,171
Warranty liabilifies under contracts 408,055 294,220
Income tax payable-to the PRC 29,671 27,805
Other liabilities 289,764 256,774
Total other payables and accrued liabliities 2,362,703 1,987,721

Accrued liabilities comprise liabilities for core operations related to the reporting penod in respect of which. the
Company has not received any exécuted documents from the: suppliers as at the. reporting date.
12 Revenue.

- Set cut below is the dlsaggregatlon of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers for the. years ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

In thousands of Kazakhslani Tenge. 2023 2022
Type of services _ o _ _
Transit ol fransportation 49,243,185 49,021,225
Domestic ot fransportation 28,326,122 26,748,847
Export oil transportation 0,273,329 10,548,668
Total revenue from contracts with customers 56,842,636 86,218,840
Revenue. N

Sales to residents 37,598,451 37,297,615
Sales to non-residents 49,243,185 49,021,225
Total revenue from contracts with ctistomers 86,842,636 86,318,840

The cost of the Company's services for transportation: of transit oil (Rosneft) along the. transportatlon route is set inUS
doliars.-Due. to .external economic events, from 28 March 2022, Rosneft made. payments in Russian Rubles. The
amaunt was converted into Russian Rubles using the US Dolfar."Russzan Ruble conversion rate.set by the Central Bank
of the: Russian Federation. From 1 July 2022, Rostieft beégan to make payments in tenge using the US dollar to: tenge
conversion rate. at the rate of the Natmnal Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan on the day of payment. These-
circumstances did not significantly affect the transpartation of transit oil.

13 Cost of sales

Cost of services rendered for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 Décember 2022 is as-follows:

I thousands of Kazakhstan! Tenge- Note. 2023 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5] 16,722,334 15,605,967
Operational and technical maintenance 14,351,719 13,621,713
Taxes-other than income tax 2,653,994 2,610,610
Sécurity services 1,431,395 1,436,619
Electricity expenses 1,333,081 1,012,383
Road maintenance and repair 480,796 408,973
Salaries 400,000 4_49 840
Insurance 309,019 208,341
inspection services 212,281 225,021
Depreciation of right-ofuse asset 2,803 287,668
Othiet ' 1,063,829 885,240
Total cost of sales’ 38,942,151 36,842,375
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14 General and administrative expenses
General and administrative ‘expensas for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

In thousands of Kazskhstani Tenge Note 2023 2022
Salaries 2;482.564 2,438,335
Salaries of hired administrative personnel {outsourcing) 638,762 ‘645,460
Taxes otherthan income tax 346,007 328,422
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6 144,680 107,678
Business trip expenses 143,324 171,253
Consulting services 128,744 7,2_41

Insurance 80,120 73,410
Communication expenses 21,751 15,406
Depreciation.of right-of-use assat 18,775 23,092
Transportation expanses. 14,697 18,127
Lease éxpenses 8,857 8,766
Other 474,163 409, 042'
Total general and administrative expenses 4,502,444 4,241,832

15 Other operating expenses and income; net
Other cperating income and expenses for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge 2023 2022
Foreigh excliange (loss)gain (otfier than loans and borrowings), net (746,261) 6,398,962
Income net of expanses from the derecognition of liabilities and right-of-

use assets 105,351 811,329
Qther{expenses)income, net {24,177} 40,591
Total other operating (expenses)/income, net {664,887) 6,950,882

16 Finance costs and finance income

Finance costs of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

In thousands of Kazaklistani Tenge 2023 2022
Foreign exc"hange loss on loans and borfowings, net - 10,177,090
fnterest oni loan from Industrial-and Commercial Bank of China and. S o

Industriat and Commerciat Bank 6f China in Almiaty JSC 3,638,022 4:593,301
Unwinding of discount on plpellne decommissioning and land:

recultivation obligation (Note 4} 984,208 846,763
Finance lease expenses. 48,354 108,604
Actuarial finance costs 2,525 1,320
Total finance costs 4,668,199 15,727,168
Foreign exchange gain-on loans and borrowings, net 1,306,490 -
Cther finance income 640,832 418,870
Total finance income: 1,947,322 416,870
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17 Income tax-expense
Iricome tax for the_’_years- ended 31 Decémber 2023 and 31 December 2022 is as follows:

In thousands of Kzzakhstani Tenge 2023 2022
‘Currentincome {ax expenses 10,078,811 0,445,676
Deferred income tax benefit (2,037,639) {1,771,640)
Income tax expenses 8,041,172 7,674,036

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax raté for 2023 .and 2022¢

In thousarids of Kazakhstani Tenge 2023 2022
Prafit before income tax 40,012,277 37,125,400
Statutory tax rate 20% 20%
Theoretical tax charge at statutery rate.of 20% 8,002,558 7,425,080
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 38,614 ‘248,956
Income tax expenses 8,041,172 7,674,036

Diffetences between IFRS and statutory taxation regulations in the Republic of Kazakhstan give. Tise 1o iempurary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and lighilities for financial reporting purposes and their fax bases.
The tax effect of the movements'in these temporary differences is detailed below.

Charged! Charged/{credi

{credited)  ted) to other _
_ 1 January to profit or comprehen- 31 December

In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge 2023 loss-  sive income 2023
Deferred tax asseis
Provision for decommissianing obllgatlon for

pipeline and its facilities and iand
_recultivation 2,256,648 196,860 {684,705} 1,768,703
Leaseliabilitics 18,086 32,271 oo 60,367
Other 163,073 (28,088) (350} 135,534,
Deferred tax asset, gross 2,438,617 201,042 (685,055) 1,954,604
Deferred tax labilities : .
Right-of-use assets {13, 995)' {25,903) - (39,898}
Loans and borrowings (27,664) 11,541 - (16,123)
Property, plant and equipment and _

intangible assets {32,222,168) 1,850,959 11,829 {30,359,380).
Deferred tax liability, gross (32,263,827) 1,836,507 11,828  (30,415401)
Net deferred tax liability {29,825,210) 2,037,638 {673,226) (23;_46’0',?9?)
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Charged/
Charged/  (credited) to.
{credited) other o
1 January toprofitor  comprehen- 31 December
n thoiréands of Kazakhstani Tenge 2022 loss sivé income 2022
Deferred tax assets
Loans and borrowings (27 ,874) 210 - (27,664}
Provision for decommissioning obligation for
pipeline and its facilities and land _ o
recultivation 2,424,532 696,665. {864,649) 2;256,548
Lease liabifities 282,499 {264,403). - 18,096
Cther 16,120 147,797 856 163,973
Deferred tax-asset, gross 2,695,277 580,269 (864,593) 2,410,953
Deferred tax liabilities L o
Right-of-use assets. _ {148,892) 134,897 - {13,985)
Property, plant and equipment and )
intangible assets {28,681,071) 1,066,474 {4,597,571)  {32,222,168)
Deferred tax liability, gross (28,829,9863) 1,191,371 (4,597,571)  (32,236,163)
Net deferred tax liability {26,134,686) 1,771,840 (5,/462,164)  (29,825,210)

18 Contingencies and commitments
Kazakhstan business environment

On 21 February 2022 the Presidant of Russia announced the recognition of the Lugansk .and Donetsk People's
Repub!;cs and on 24 February sent mobilised military troops to the territory of Ukraine, Inresponseto Russia'sactions,

the United States of America, the European Union and several other countries |mposed sanctions against Russia,

including cutting off a number of Russian financial tnstltutions from SWIFT, Russia is Kazakhstan's largest- iradlng
partner, accounting for up to 40% of non-oil exports, and isa key trade transit, in: partlcularthrough thie Caspian Pipeline
Consartium (CPC), which allows the-export. of up to 80% of Kazakh crude oil,

'CPC operations were- mterruptad in March 2022 due to hurricane damage, but this did nothave:a significant impact on
the budgei due 1o oil prices rise, however, Russia's prolonged closure of the CPC'route for Kazakh crude oil will. have.
serious consequences for Kazakhstan s éxports'and the aconomy:in general The Kazakh authontles are conmdenng
alternative rotites to the Caspian Sea, including through Azerbaijan, Georgid and Turkey, but these will require
significant investment in. additional infrastructure, and the replacement of the GPC route-will fake. ‘many years.

As a result of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine and its aftermath, the exchange rate of tenge has becorné iore.
volatile, with annual inflation reaching almost 20.3% in December 2022, To date, the Nationai Bank of the Republic.of
Kazakhstan has taken'a number of. measures to maintain the stabifity of the financial system of Kazakhstan. -

The long-term effects of the current economiic situation are difficult to predict and management's current expectations
and estimates may differ from actual resuits.

In'general, the economy: of the Republic of Kazakhstan caritinues to display characteristics of an emerging market. Its:
economy is particularly sensitive to.prices on-oil and'gas and other minerals, which constitute-major part ofthe couniry's
‘export. These characteristics in¢lude; but are not limited to, the existence of national currency that is not: freely.
convartible cutside of the: country and a fow level of liquidity of securities markets. High: inflation rate,.problems caused
by the- recent internal unrest in-January 2022, engoing political tensions in the: reglon, exchange rate volatility- have had
and may continte: to have a negative impact on:the economy of the Repubiic of Kazakhstan, including reéduction; of
liguidity and creation of difficulties in attracting international financing.

In September 2023 S&P Global Ratings, international rating agency affirmed the long-term foreign and local currency
sovereign credit ratings of Kazakhstan of "BBB-".. The credit rating forecast was downgraded to "negative" as.a result
of grawing external and financial risks. Fitch has afﬁrmed Kazakhstan's long-term rating as BBB" with a 'stable' olitlook.
A stable outlook is supported by the.government's sfrong fiscal and externaf balance sheets, financial flexibility backed
by accumulated savings from oil revenues, a net financial creditof pasition, and meéasures implemented by the:
Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
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The economic -environment has a significant. impact on-the Company's operations and financial position. The
management takes alt necessary measures to-ensure the sustainable operation of the:Company. However, the future
impact of the’ current economic: ‘situation is- difﬁcult to predict and management's cufrent expectations and estimates
may differ from actual results..

Additionally, the-oil and gas sectorin the Republic of Kazakhstan is still impacied by po'ls'ht:a'l legislative; fiscal and
regulatory developments in the Republic 6f Kazakhstan, Thé prospects for future economic stability in the Republic of
Kazakhstan are largely dependent upon the effectiveness of economic measures undertaken by the Government,
together with legal, conirolling and.political developments, which are beyond the Company's confrol.

The management expects that, in case. ofa significant restriction of the gxport of Kazakh oil through Russia in a westem
dlrectlon it is possible fo increase the volume of transportation through the Company's-main oil pipelines.

The company cantinues to maniter the 5|tuat|on and is developing an action plan-to overcome possible difficulties
caused by the situation in‘the region,.Including increased voiahllty The management also analyses possibile scenarios
in connection with the exjsting. supply and logistics risks and develops-a detailed-action plan.

‘The presented financial statements reflect management's views on the:impact that business conditions in-‘Kazakhstan
have on the Comipany’s operations and financial condition. The actual impact ¢f future operating conditions may differ
frorm 'managenient’s estimates.

Capital expenditure commitments and compliance with the investment program.

In accordance:with the Law of the'Republic of Kazakhstan “On. Natural Munopolles“ the subject of a natural monopoly
is obliged to carry out the activities of the. approved investment | program. The company has completed the approved
investment program for 2023-in full, with the exception of the service for conducting in-ine inspection.of the' Kenkiyak-
Kumkol Main-OQil Pipeline (heremafter referred to as the ILI). Due to delays on the tender procedure porial, the Company
was able to conclude. an-agreement with the contractor only on 4 December-2023 and, therefare, éxecution under the
agreement in 2023 amounted to 20% of the total scope of work. The company: fi led’ an appeal to the- government
authorities 1o postpone the ILI services from 2023 to 2024 in order to prevent the application of a compensatory tariff..
The deadline for government authorities to make the decision on approving the investmént program is no later than
1 March 2024, Management believes that it is highly likely that a decision on this issue will be made in favour of the-
company.

As at 31 December 2023 the. Company has contractual capital expenditure commifments.in respect of property, plant
and equipmént totalling Tenge 1,326,111 thousand (31 December 2022: Tenge 193 012 thousand).

Taxation

Kazakhstani tax |legislation and practice are in a state 'of continuous development, and therefare is subject to varying
mterpretahons and frequent changes, which may: be retroactive. In certain situations, to. determme a tax-base; the tax
legislation reférs to International IFRS provisions. in such cases, interpretation of IFRS provisioris by the Kazakhstan!_
tax authorities may différ from actounting policies, Judgments and estimates used by management for preparatlon of

the financial statements, and this may result in additional tax liabilities for the Company. Tax periods remain open’ to
retroactive review by the Kazakhstan 1ax authorities for 5. years,

Penalties. are generally 80% of the taxes additionally ‘assessed and interest is. assessed -at the refinancing: rate
established by the National Bank of Kazakhstan muiuplled by:1. 25, As aresult, penaltles and interest can amount io
multiples of any assessed taxes.. Fiscal’ penods rémain open to review by tax. authorities for five caiendar yedrs
preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances, réviews may cover longer périods.

Tax audit

On 26 September 2022, Almaty Department of State Revenues (warrant No. 547} began a comprehensive tax avidit of
Kazakhstan-Ghina Pipeline LLP forthe period from 1.January 2017 to 31 Decembaer 2021, Based on the results.of the
audit, in' December 2023 the Company received an act, according to which-an understatement of corporate income tax.
for- 2021 was identified in‘the amourit of Tenge 50,594 thousand; and-an-administrative fine was imposed in the amount
of Ténge 40;475 thousand: The total-amount:of. payment oftax;: -pehaliies-and fines, with a discount of 50%, amournted
to Ténge 74,965 thousand:

Environmental contingencies
The enforcernent of enwronmental regulatlon in Kazakhstan |s evolving and subject to ongomg changes F'otent;al

teglslatlon managemant belleves that there are no- probable or possible Ilabllltles which could have a matena[ adverse
.effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations except for those described in the present financial
-statements (Notes 4).
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fnsurance

The insurance industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan is in a developing state:and many forms.of insurance protection
comman in other parts- of the-world are not yet generally available.  The Company does:not have full. coverage for.its.
property, planit and eqmpment busiriess’ interruption, or third party lisbility in réspect of property of envirofimental
damage arising from-accidents on. Company properly or relating o Company s operations.

Applying a reduced withholding tax rate

On 1 January 2023, the Multilateral Convention 1o implement Tax Treaty Rélated Measures to Prevent Base Erosion.
and Profit Shifting, concludéd in Paris on-24 November 2016 {heréinafter referred to as the "Multilateral Convention”)
came into force with respect to the RK-and the PRC; which are parties to the Double Taxation Treaty.

Moréover, in 2023, an.amendment. was made to Article 667, paragraph 1 of the Tax Code of Republic of Kazakhstan, '
actording to which, for pufposes. of applylng Double Taxation Treaty a non-resident related party.should meet certain
conditions.

As part of the Loan Agreement dated 27 June 2048 conciuded between the Company, Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited and Industrial-and Commercial Bank of China in Almaty JSC (hereinafter referred to as.the Loan
Agreement), the Company developed & new version of confirmation certificate, ‘taking into account tequirermnents of the
Multitateral Convention and.the Tax Code of the. RK (here:nafter referred to°as the New Form Gonfirmation Certifi icate}.

Upon receipt of a New Form Confirmation Certificate with attached documents, from 2023, a reduced rate of wtthholdlng
tax is applied to interast on the ivan. Othenmse a rate of 15% applies. Management of the Company ¢ontinued to
apply the reduced rate of 10% in 2023, as it believed that it would' receive the required New Form Confirmation
Certificates within the timeframe specified in the Tax Code of Republic of Kazakhstan.

19 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The main financial liabilities of the Company inciude trade and other payables, loans and bormowings. These financial
instruments are- primarily used to raise ﬁnancmg for the Company’s business activifies. The Company has frade:
receivables, cash and cash equwalents arising directly from the Companys business activities,

The Company is exposed to market fisk, which consists oft credit risk, currency risk and Jiquidity risk.

The management of the Company reviews and approves the fallowing measures taken to- manage these risks.

Credif risk

The Company trades only with re¢pgnized, creditworthy parties. Itis the Company's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms.are subject to credit verification procedures. In-addition, recgivable balances:are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the resiilt:that the Company s. exposure to bad debisis not 3|gnrfcant 'The maximum:exposure

10 credit risk in respect of a trade accounts recgivable is represented by its carrying amount. There are no'significant
concentrations of credit fisk within the Corripany.

The Company’ places.cash and. depos;ts with Kazakhstani and foreign banks. The. Company s management reviews,
credit ratings of these banks pericdically to éliminate extraordinary credit risk exposure. The Company's management.
believes that recent international credit crisis and subsequent changes in credit cating of local banks do not justify
extraordinary credit risk. Accordingly, rio impairment provision agamet bank deposits-is réquired. Credit risk is mainly
concentrated in depoerts cash and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of deposits and
cash and cash equivaients is represented by their carrying. amount

The table below shows the balances of bank-accounis and cash and cash equivalents as at the reportlng date using.
Moogdy's credit ratings. '

_ _ ____Rating 31.December 31 December
In thousends of Kazakhstani Tenge Location 2023 2022 2023 2022
Banks _ _ o
Industriai and-Commercial Bank of China in o o
Almaly JSC* Kazakhstan:  A1: Al 45;857,802. 28,237,989
Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan-JSC Kazakhstan®  Baa2: Baa2 1,507,674 11,468,034
Bank-of China'in Alashankou JSC China- Al A1 -2,650. 27,909
SB Bank of China in Kazakhstan JSC Kazakhstan, Al Al - 30
Total 47,368,026 39,733,962

*Raling of banks iri the PRC.
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Liguidity risk
The Company thonitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a current liquidity. planning tool. This tool considers.the

miaturity of both its financial investments and findncial assets (8.9., trade accounts receivable, other financial assets)
and projected cash flows from operatlons

3 December 2022 based on’ ccntractual undlecounted payments Loans and borrowmge compnee expected interest
expenses:

_ _ _ From 1 o Frem 2 to _
In thiousands of Kazakhstani Tenge <1 year 2 years 5 years: > years Total.

At 31 Decembier 2023

Loans and barrowings 32,846,463 - - - 32,846,463
Trade and other payables 2,704,391 - - - 2,704,394
Prévisions for payables to suppliers 1,047,210 - _ - - 1,047,210
Lease liabilities 43,783 43,900 135,248 45,558. .268,489.
Total 36,641,847 43,900 135,248 45,558 38,866,553

At 31 Dacember 2022

Loansand borrowings 35,218,081 33,117,671 - - 68,336,732
Trade and other payables 2,175,643 ' Lo - - 2,175,643
Provisions for payables to suppliers 422,145 - - - 422145
1 ease fiabilities- 37,21 47,810 3,349 36,792 125,152
Total 37,854,050 33,165,481 3,349 36,792 71,059,672

As at 31 December 2023, current assets of the Company mainly include cash- and cash ‘equivalents of
Tenge 23,836,867. thousand and bank deposits of Tenge 23,527,680 thousand. Current liabilities mainly include loans
and borrowings of Terige 32,842,895 tholsand and accourits payab!e {orelated. partles of Tenge 1,574,438 thousand,

including payables to KazTransQil JSC.of Tenge 1,473,632 thousand.as well as.lizbilities under contracts fcr provision
of transportation services in the total amount of Tenge 8,725,959 thousand. In order to improve liquidity, in 2018 the
Compeny obtained the new refi inancing foah with longer maturity. The Company intends to repay- outstanding loans

using cash.from its operating activities.

As at 31 Deceinber2023, the Company’s current dssets exceeded its currant ligbilities by Tenge 2,781,101 thousand,
which was mainly- due to.the early repayment of thé loan in February and August 2023 in the amount equivalent {oi
Tenge 21,694,250 thousand which signifi cantly decreased the financial burden on the Company’s future cash flows.

Management believes that the current assets and. expected cash flows from operating activities wil} be sofficient {o
mieet the Company's current liabilifies within the confractual time frame, taking itito account the projected. profi tability,
the loan repayment schedule-and the factthat current liabilities as at 31 December 2022 inclutle advances received for
oil transportation services of Tenge-8,313,639 thousand,

Capital management

"The primary objectlve of the Company's capital management is 1o.ensure that it-maintains a strong credit rating and
heaithy equity ratios in order to. support its business and maximize. shareholder value, The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments to it; in light of changes in.economic conditions. In order to maintain or- change-
the capital structure Company can regulate amount of dividend paymente return cepltal to a shareholder or issue new

-shares.

No charnges were made in the objectives, policies- or- processes for ‘managing capital- dufing. the. years. ended
‘31 December 2023 and 31 Decémber 2022.
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Currency.risk

The table below shows the total amount of foreign currency denorinated assets and liabilities that give rise to currency
risk.

_ Loans and
In thousands of Kazakhstani Ténge: Cash and deposits borrowings Net balance amount.
At 31 December 2023 o
US Dollar 33,881,867 (32,842,895) 1,038,972
At 31 December 2022 o _ _
US Dollar 35,743,665 (66,097,880) (30,354,215)

The - Company: has tools. to reduce curreicy risks associated with the Company's operations. The .schedule for
repayment of obligations in US dollars under the Loan Agreement is structured in such a way that payments of principal
debt and remunaration under the schedile are covered by the incorning foreign exchange eamings from the
transportation of transit oil under the corifract with Rosneft. Thus, the. Company minimized the sisk of negatlve |mpact'
of tenge volatility on cash flows, Also, as of 31 December 2023, the Compzny has accumulated $74.329:thousand,

which is enough to repay the. pnnmpal and pay remuneration under the Loan Agreement by 6 February 2024 and
6 August 2024 according to the schedule.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to.a reasonably possible:change inthe US Dallar exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, ofthe Company’s profit and equity {due to changes inthe fair value of monetary assets

.....

and liabilities).

Increase/decrease in Effect on profit
In thousands of Kazakhstani Tenge exchange rate .and equity
2023 L . .
S Dollars +10.00%/(10,00%) 83,118/(83,118)
2022 _
US Doilars: +10.00%4{10,00%) (2,428,337)/2,428.337

20 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value.is the amount at'which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a-current transaction between willing
parties, other than in-a forced sale or Ilqu:datlon -and is best ewdenced by an act;ve quoted market price.

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value. hierarchy-as. fcl[ows (i} level one are measurements
at quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; (i) leve! two measurements are
valuations technlques with all material inputs. cbservable-for. the. asset-or Ilablllty gither directly (that | is, a8’ prices} or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and (iii) level three measureients aré' valuations not based-on. abservable
market data (that is, the measurement requires unobservable inputs).

All of the Company's financial instruments are tarried amortised cost. Théir fair values were determined using,
tevel 3 measurements of the fair value hierarchy, based: on the availabie market data or relevant valuation techniques.

However, Judgement is required to interprei market.data to determine_the estimated fair vaiue.. The Republic of
Kazakhstan continues to display some characteristics of an emerging market:and economic conditions continie to limit
the volume of activity in the financial markets. Market quotations may be outdated or reflect distress sale transactions,

and therefore rot represent fair values offinancial instruments. Manggement has used all available market information
in estimating the Tair value of financial instruments.

Financial assets.carried at amoitised cost

The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments. is based on: estimated future cash flows expected to be
received discourited at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
Discount rates used depend on the credit risk of the- -counterparty. Due fo the short-term nature of trade receivables,
their carrying amount approximates their fair value.

Due to the: shorkterm nature of cash, bank deposits, trade and other. receivables, their carrying amount approximates
their fair value.
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Financial liabllities carried af amortised cost

The fair value- of urquoted fixed iriteérest rate instruments with stated. maturities weré estimated baseéd on expected
cash flows discounted at.current interest rates for new instrumentswith similar credit risks and remaining maturities.
Due to the short-term nature of trade payables, their carrying amount.approximates their fair value.

Loans and borrowmgs are-carried at amortised cost which approximatés their fair value due to the factthat interest rate
under attracted loans is ﬂoatlng

The fair value of lease liabilities.as.of the reporting date is Tenge 251,834 thousand (2022: Tenge 90,481 thousand).

21 Subsequent events
Early repayment of loans and borrowings

On 1 February 2024, the Company fully repaid the principal amount and accrued interest on the Joan received in
2018 under the loan agreement with the Industrial and Gommercial Bank of China joiritly with the Industrial and’
Commercial Bank of China JSC in Almaty, acting as an agent, in in the amount of US Dellar 70,000 thousand
(equivalent fo. Tenge-31,341,800 thousand on the date of payment) and US Dollar 2,930.76 thousand (equwalent to
Tenge 1,312,218 thousand on the date of payment),. respectively,

At the date of issue: of the financial statements, there were no-other events that required adjustrnent or-disclosure in
the financial statements and notes thereto.

Positive or negative unbalance
For detailed information about changes in 2024 see Note 4.
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